
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

*PLEASE NOTE STARTING TIME 

Cabinet Procurement Committee 

 
THURSDAY, 30TH JUNE, 2011 at *18:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Goldberg (Chair), Bevan, Kober and Reith 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (if any)    
 

2. URGENT BUSINESS    

 

 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. Late items 
will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be dealt 
with at item 9 below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at item 12 
below. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    

 

 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 
 



 

2 

4. MINUTES    

 

 To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Procurement Committee held 
on 12 May 2011. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS    

 

 To consider any requests received in accordance with Standing Orders. 
 

6. COMMUNITY MEALS CONTRACT    

 

 (Report of the Director of Adult and Housing Services): To seek approval to amend 
Minute PROC.10 (2010/11) by correcting the name of the contractor to whom a 
contract extension was approved for the provision of Community Meals.  
 

7. DOWNHILLS PRIMARY SCHOOL RECEPTION AND KITCHEN WORKS    

 

 (Report of the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service): To seek 
approval to appoint a contractor to carry out re-modelling works at Downhills Primary 
School and to issue a letter of acceptance prior to formal contract signature for 10% 
of the contract value. 
 

8. REVISIONS TO CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS    

 

 (Report of the Director of Corporate Services) - To consider proposed amendments to 
the Council’s Contract Standing Orders and as appropriate to recommend them to the 
Constitution Review Working Group for endorsement and referral to the Council for 
adoption. 
 

9. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    

 

 To consider any items admitted at item 2 above. 
 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC    

 

 The following item is likely to be the subject of a motion to exclude the press and 
public as they contain exempt information which either relates to the business or 
financial affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that 
information) or the amount of any expenditure proposed to be incurred by the 
authority under any particular contract for the acquisition of property or the supply of 
goods and services. 
 
Note by the Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  
 
Item 11 allows for the consideration of exempt information in relation to item 7  which 
appears earlier on the agenda. 
 
 



 

3 

11. DOWNHILLS PRIMARY SCHOOL RECEPTION AND KITCHEN WORKS    

 

 (Report of the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service): To seek 
approval to appoint a contractor to carry out re-modelling works at Downhills Primary 
School and to issue a letter of acceptance prior to formal contract signature for 10% 
of the contract value. 
 
 

12. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS    

 

 To consider any items admitted at 2 above. 
 

 
 
David McNulty  
Head of Local Democracy 
and Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Richard Burbidge 
Cabinet Committees Manager  
Tel: 020 8489 2923 
Fax: 020 8489 2660 
Email:richard.burbidge@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 
22 June 2011 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 12 MAY 2011 

Councillors Goldberg (Chair), *Bevan, Kober and *Reith   
 

*Present  
 

 

MINUTE 

NO. 

 

SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 

BY 

 

PROC76.

 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1) 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors Goldberg and 
Kober. In the absence of Councillor Goldberg, Councillor Reith took the 
Chair. 
 

(Councillor Reith in the Chair) 
 

 
 

PROC77.

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Agenda Item 3) 
 
Councillor Bevan in respect of item 6 – Mulberry Primary School – Re-
modelling Works. 
 

 
 
HLDMS 

 

PROC78.

 
MINUTES (Agenda Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED 

 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2010 be 
approved and signed. 

 

 
 
 
 
HLDMS 

PROC79.

 
THE MULBERRY PRIMARY SCHOOL - REMODELLING WORKS 

(Report of the Director of the Children and Young Peoples Service - 
Agenda Item 6) 
 
Councillor Bevan declared a personal interest in this item by virtue of 
being Chair of the London Housing Consortium. 
 

The Appendix to the interleaved report was the subject of a motion to 
exclude the press and public from the meeting as it contained exempt 
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular 
person (including the Authority holding that information). 
 
We noted that the report sought our approval to appoint a recommended 
contractor to carry out re-modelling works at The Mulberry Primary 
School and to the issuing of a letter of acceptance prior to formal 
contract signature for 10% of the contract value.  
 
RESOLVED 

 
1. That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11.03, approval 

be granted to the award of the contract for the re-modelling works 
at the Mulberry Primary School to Diamond Build plc on the terms 
and conditions set out in the Appendix to the interleaved report. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCYPS 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 12 MAY 2011 
 

2. That approval be granted to the issuing of a letter of acceptance 
prior to formal contract signature for 10% of the contract value. 

 

DCYPS 

 
The meeting ended at 18.18 hours. 
 
LORNA REITH 
In the Chair 
 
 

Page 2



 
 

a5_procurement_commitee_report_template_contracts_over_250k_award 

 
 

Agenda item:  
 

 

   Procurement Committee                       On 30th  JUNE 2011 
 
 

 

Report Title: Community Meals  Contract - Rectification 

 

Report of: Mun Thong Phung, Director of Adult & Housing Services 
 
 
Signed : 
 

 
Contact Officer : Lisa Redfern, Deputy Director, Adult and Community Services 

 

 
Wards(s) affected: All 
 

Report for: Key Decision 
 

1.  Purpose of the report  

1.1 Approval for a rectification of the decision taken by the Procurement Committee 
on 6 July 2010 to extend the contract for the provision of Community Meals to 
Sodexo Healthcare Services to Sodexo Ltd. 

1.2 To amend Minute PROC (2010/11) of the Procurement Committee meeting held 
on the 6 July 2010 by correcting the name of the contractor to whom a contract 
extension was approved for the provision of Community Meals to Sodexo Ltd.   

1.3 Approval to novate the contract from Sodexo Healthcare Services  Ltd to Sodexo 
Ltd. 

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member  

2.1  I note the correction to the records of Community Meals – Extension of Contract.  

 

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies: 

3.1 Not applicable 

[No.] 

Agenda Item 6Page 3



 

  

4. Recommendations 

4.1 That approval is granted to the amendment of Minute PROC 10 (2010/11) of the 
Procurement Committee meeting held on the 6th July 2010 to the extension of the 
contract for the provision of Community Meals to Sodexo Ltd.  

4.2 Approval is also required to novate the contract for Community Meals from Sodexo 
Healthcare Services Ltd to Sodexo Ltd. 

 
 
5.  Reason for recommendation(s) 
5.1 Sodexo Healthcare Services Ltd was awarded the contract Provision of 

Community Meals on 1st March 2005. 
5.2 In accordance with Contract Standing Order 13.02, a further 2 years extension of 

the contract in the same name was approved by Cabinet Procurement Committee 
on 6th July 2010.  

5.3  It has recently been established that on 31 August 2008 there was a transfer of the 
Community Meals contract within the Sodexo group of companies from Sodexo 
Healthcare Services Ltd to Sodexo Ltd.  

5.4  It is therefore requested that the minutes of the report to Cabinet Procurement 
Committee of 6th July 2010 to approve the extension of the Community  Meals 
contract be amended to Sodexo Ltd and the contract be formally novated to the 
name of Sodexo Ltd.  

5.5  Sodexo Ltd is providing a good service which is regularly monitored via regular 
contract review meetings and consultation with service users. 

 

 
6. Other options considered 
6.1 Not applicable. 
 

 
7. Summary 
7.1 Not applicable 
 

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments 

8.1 This proposal will have no financial implications.  
 

9. Head of Legal Services Comments 

9.1 The Head of Legal Services notes the contents of the report. 
9.2 In order to formalise the relationship with Sodexo Ltd, a deed of novation will need 

to be prepared transferring the liabilities from Sodexo Healthcare Services Ltd to 
Sodexo Ltd with effect from 31 August 2008. 

9.3 The Head of Legal Services confirms that there are no legal reasons preventing 
Members from approving the recommendations in this report.     

 

Page 4



 

  

10.  Head of Procurement Comments 

10.1  The Head of Procurement notes the need to formally amend the minutes to the 
correct name. 

 

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comment  

11.1 Not applicable 
 

12. Consultation  

12.1 Not applicable 
 

13. Service Financial Comments 

13.1  It is not envisaged that the amendment proposed will of itself have any direct 
financial implications.  

  

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

14.1 Not applicable 
 

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

15.1. The following background papers were consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 -Contract Documentation and Specification – Community Meals; and 
 - Community Meals – Extension of Contract report to Procurement Committee 6th 

July 2010. 
           

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Procurement_committee_report – Downhills Primary School 

 
 

Agenda item:  
 

 

   Report to Procurement Committee                                                    30 June 2011  
 
 

 

Report Title. Downhills Primary School Reception and Kitchen Works 

 

Report of : Peter Lewis,  Director of Children and Young People’s Service 
 
Signed :                      
 

Contact Officer :   

Brendan Bannister, Senior Project Manager, Children and Young People’s Service 
 

 

 
Wards(s) affected: West Green 
 
 
 

Report for: Key Decision 
 

 

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)  

 
1.1. To seek Procurement Committee approval to appoint the recommended 

contractor named in Part B of this report for re-modelling works at Downhills  
Primary School. 

1.2. To seek approval to issue letter of intent prior to formal contract signature for 
10% of the contract value in accordance with CSO 12.02.  

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member) 

2.1. I believe that all appropriate procedures have been followed and am happy to 
support the recommendation in this report. 

2.2. I am very pleased that we are able to improve facilities in this school.  
 

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies: 

 

[No.] 

Agenda Item 7Page 7



 

Procurement committee report – Downhills Primary School 

 
 

The project at Downhills Primary School aims to significantly improve the school 
security and the environment for pupils and teachers. 

 
 
3.1. Council Priorities 
 
3.1.1 Making Haringey one of London’s Greenest Boroughs 
 
3.1.1.1 The design and construction will support each of the seven Haringey Greenest 

Borough Strategy Priorities in the following ways: 
 

· Priority One - Improving the Urban Environment:  

 

• The building project will aim for zero waste.  

 

· Priority Two - Protecting the Natural Environment:  

 

• Extended community use of the school, exploiting the significantly improved 
facilities. 

  

· Priority Three - Managing Environmental Resources efficiently:  

 

• Within the school design, measures to be incorporated to minimise the utilities 
used on a daily basis.  

• This will include minimising the use of water and energy through the installation of 
energy efficient fixtures and fittings.  

 

· Priority Four - Leading by example, managing the public sector sustainably:  

• ICT design will ensure energy use is minimised by incorporating automatic 
switch off of all devices within the software used.  

• In addition the size of each device installed will be appropriate to the required 
tasks and the numbers of servers used will be minimised by centralising data 
centres creating further energy savings.  

• Where possible legacy equipment to be reused or recycled. All new “white 
good” appliances to be AAA energy rated.  

• Through a combination of good design and school best practice achieve a 10% 
reduction in energy used by the catering facilities  

 

· Priority Five - Sustainable design and construction:  

• Only certified (COC) timber will be used in construction and there will be 

Page 8



 

Procurement committee report – Downhills Primary School 

 
 

reduced use of VOC materials.  

• A Site Waste Management Plan to national WRAP standards ensuring best 
practice in site construction management is included.  

 

· Priority Six - Promoting sustainable travel:  

• The works design has been integrated with the school’s travel plan promoting 
the use of sustainable travel to school, such as cycling.  

 

· Priority Seven - Raising awareness and involvement:  

 

3.1.2 Creating a Better Haringey: Cleaner, Greener and Safer 

 

3.1.2.1 The Downhills Primary School project will vastly improve the school security by 
relocating the reception adjacent to the primary entrance route, remodelled 
kitchen to provide a modern and energy efficient facility and generally 
improve site accessibility and an improved aesthetic for the greater school 
community.   

 

3.1.3 Encouraging Lifetime Well Being, at Home, Work Play and Learning 

3.1.3.1 The Primary Capital Programme will contribute to the transformation in 
outcomes for young people in Haringey by improving the learning 
environment, providing anywhere/anytime access to ICT and providing a 
wider range of pathways of study.  

 

3.1.3.2 The project will promote learning through access to greater opportunities for all 
within the community.  

 

3.1.4 Promoting independent living while supporting adults and children when 
needed 

 

3.1.4.1 The contractor will look to implement, wherever possible, the council’s policies 
in respect of employing local labour, and creating apprenticeships for local 
people.  

 
3.1.5 Delivering Excellent, Customer Focussed, Cost Effective Services 
 
3.1.5.1 Key to the success of this project and the Primary Capital programme is the 

improvement of standards in schools.  
 

Page 9



 

Procurement committee report – Downhills Primary School 

 
 

 

 
 
3.2 Council Strategy 
 
The development project at Downhills Primary School is being carried out to improve 
site and building circulation, site security, catering and reception facilities, learning 
and is considered a high priority within the Primary Capital Programme. 
 
3.2.1 The Children & Young People’s Plan 
 
3.2.1.1 The successful completion of this project will be instrumental in Haringey 

achieving the aims and objectives of the Children and Young People’s Plan 
2006 – 2009 which are aligned with those in the national Children’s Plan 
2008 – 2020. 

 
3.2.1.2 The project will help deliver the Every Child Matters agenda and provide an 

opportunity to transform education in Haringey by delivering a school that our 
young people, our teachers and our local communities deserve.  

 
3.2.2 The Primary Strategy for Change 
 
3.2.1 The planned design and construction programme for the school improvements 

will support and contribute towards the following five principles of Haringey’s 
Primary Strategy for Change: 

 

• Principle 1:  We want all children to be able to enjoy their learning and to 
make good progress;  

• Principle 2: We want to promote learning through access to greater 
opportunities for all within the community; 

• Principle 3: We want to secure the health and well-being of our children and 
young people and safeguard their welfare, especially the more vulnerable; 

• Principle 4: We want to further develop the leadership capacity in our schools; 

• Principle 5: We want to integrate ICT throughout as part of the transformation 
of learning experiences for children, young people and the community. 

 

4. Recommendations 

4.1. That Members agree to award the contract for the above project to the 
contractor named in Part B as allowed under Contract Standing Order 
CSO.11.03. 

 
4.2. That Members agree to the issue of a letter of intent at 10% of the contract 

value in accordance with CSO 12.02. 

Page 10



 

Procurement committee report – Downhills Primary School 

 
 

 
5. Reason for recommendation(s) 
 

5.1. The contractor named in Part B paragraph 2.12 was evaluated on cost (60%) 
and quality (40%).  The combined scoring is considered to represent the best 
value for money and is considered to be satisfactory as the basis for a contract.  

 
5.2. To enhance the built environment, improve school security, modernise catering 

facilities and improve the learning environment for both pupils and teachers at 
Downhills Primary School. 

 

 
6. Other options considered 
 

6.1. A total of six contractors on the Framework Agreement for the provision of 
Major Works Construction Services were invited to tender for the works. One 
contractor declined during the tender period.  Details of this are contained in 
Part B, exempt information. 

 

 
7. Summary 
 
Background 
 

7.1. The London Borough of Haringey identified Downhills Primary School requiring 
much need improvements to the school site security, catering facilities and 
reception.   

 
7.2. The project will be carried out in 3 phases aimed to minimise disruption to the 

school : 
 

• Phase 1: Develop Main kitchen and corridor to resources room, including 
external opening and step access to playground. 

• Phase 2: running concurrently with Phase 1 this phase includes 
remodelling of existing kitchen to form new reception, entrance and office 
accommodation 

• Phase 3: Remodel existing reception space to be used for general teaching 
space. 

 
7.3. The planning application for the works was approved on 9th June 2011.  

 
7.4. Building control application has been submitted by the lead consultant. 
7.5. The current budget in SAP for the project is £500,000. The PCP programme 

also contains an approved PCP contingency budget of £250,000 and formal 
approval of a virement from PCP contingency of £25,000 to bring the cash limit 
budget up to £525,000 has been agreed by the Primary and Pre-School capital 

Page 11



 

Procurement committee report – Downhills Primary School 

 
 

Commissioning Board. This will be processed through the Council’s SAP 
system once ratified by Cabjnet in July 2011. The project budget is inclusive of 
construction works, professional fees, disbursements, furniture and fittings, and 
contingency.  

 
7.6. The key decision is included in the Forward Plan. 

 
7.7. The Children and Young People’s Service is project managing this project.  

Norfolk Property Services were appointed from the Haringey Design 
Framework as lead designer in February 2011 and will progress the project to 
completion as contract administrator. 

 
Procurement Process 
 
7.8. Competitive tenders were invited from six firms from the Framework Agreement 

for the Major Building Construction Works banding value £250,000 to £999,999 
on the basis of their financial capability to undertake the project. 

 
7.9. The defects liability period (rectification period) is 12 months. 
 
7.10. Five tenders were received for Tender A (contract period 14 weeks), one 

contractor declined during the tender period.   
 

7.11. The tenders were adjudicated by the lead consultant and checked for 
arithmetical accuracy and compliance with the tender specification. One 
tendered price has been adjusted due to minor arithmetical errors. The quality 
assessment summary is contained at Part B.  

 
7.12. The contract is to be awarded on a fixed price basis.  

 
7.13. The procurement route is based on a fully designed scheme. 

 
7.14. Tenders include site establishment and management costs, overhead and 

profit.  
 
7.15. A letter of intent is intended to be issued for 10% of the contract value. 
 
7.16. The London Housing Consortium (LHC) Network offers a selection of products, 

services and contractors through pre-tendered framework arrangements.  A 
review of the LHC framework arrangements has been carried out and goods 
and services, where applicable, have been applied. This was referenced in the 
tender documents.  This document is appended to Part B, appendix A. 

 
Programme 
 
7.17. The work is scheduled to commence on site in July 2011 and complete in 

November 2011.   

Page 12



 

Procurement committee report – Downhills Primary School 

 
 

 
7.18. The construction period will be 14 weeks, in defined phases of completion. 
 
Sustainability 
 
7.19. A Site Waste Management Plan has been allowed within the project and has 

been produced ready to be taken forward by the contractor. 
 
7.20. Based on the remodelling nature of the project BREEAM is not considered for 

this project.  
 
7.21. Timber will be obtained from certified sustainable sources. 

 
7.22. The design includes energy efficient lighting systems.  
 

8.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

 
8.1. There is sufficient funding available within Primary Capital Programme funding 

to finance the capital works of £525,000.  
 

 

9.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

 
9.1  The Framework Agreement for Major Works was tendered in Europe in 

compliance with European procurement legislation (the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2006). 

 
9.2  Six contractors on the Council’s Framework Agreement for the provision of 

Major Works Construction Services were invited to tender for the works at 
Downhills Primary School. 

 
9.3  Children and Young People’s Service Directorate now wishes to award the 

contract to the contractor named in Part B of the report. 
 

9.4 Because of the value of the contract, the award must be approved by the 
Procurement Committee in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11.03. 

 
9.5  The Head of Legal Services confirms that there are no legal reasons preventing 

Members from approving the recommendations contained in this report.  
 

10.  Head of Procurement Comments  

 
10.1. The contractors invited to tender have been selected from the Council’s 

Page 13



 

Procurement committee report – Downhills Primary School 

 
 

Framework Agreement for Major Building Construction Works 2010, banding 
value £250,000 to £999,999… 

10.2. The tender has been prepared and tendered  on a quality/price basis of 
40%/60% and evaluated as the most economically advantageous tender for 
this award. 

10.3. The selected contractor as recommended in Part B Exempt Information 
(paragraphs 2.10 and 2.14) represents best value for the council.  

  

11.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

 
11.1. An Equality Impact Assessment is not deemed necessary fro this project  

 

12.  Consultation  

 
12.1. Stage events have taken place at design stages B and E, which invited 

comments and debate from parents, teachers and members of the local 
community.  Feedback from events/ consultation was collated and incorporated 
into the design. 

 
12.2. The Children and Young People’s Service, Governors, the school head and 

staff have all had input in agreeing the scheme.   
 

12.3. A fortnightly steering/ user group was established with representatives from the 
School’s Governing Body, Staff and C&YPS Officers of the Council. 

 
12.4. Project newsletters will be issued to update the school and the local community 

on progress. 
 

12.5. Regular progress updates will be placed within the school newsletter. 
 

12.6. A design stage review group was established with Client officers to appraise 
the design at each key stage.  Stage approval was obtained prior to proceeding 
to the next stage. 

 

13.  Service Financial Comments 

 
13.1. The capital programme contains sufficient Primary Capital Programme funds to 

support the projected costs of £525,000. The sum of £525,000 includes a total 
contingency in excess of 10% and is considered adequate. 

 
 

14.  Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

Page 14



 

Procurement committee report – Downhills Primary School 

 
 

 
14.1. Part B of this report contains exempt information. 

 

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
15.1. List of background documents: Framework Agreement for Major Works, 

January 2006. 
 
15.2. This report contains exempt and non-exempt information.  Exempt information 

is under the following category (identified in amended Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972). s. (3) Information relating to financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 

 
 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 1 

 
 

Agenda item:  
 

 

   Cabinet Procurement Committee                       On 16th June 2011 
 
 

 

Report Title.                Review of Contract Standing Orders (CSOs) 

 

Report of  Julie Parker – Director of Corporate Resources 
 

 
 
Signed : 

 
 

Contact Officer:           Michael Wood – Head of Procurement 

 

 
Wards(s) affected:  
All 
 

Report for:  
Key Decision 

 

1. Purpose of the report - This report sets out proposed amendments to the 
Council’s Contract Standing Orders (CSOs) so as to: 

1.1.1 Ensure a regulatory framework that continues to reflect good procurement practice 
and governance.  

1.1.2 Provide clarity where necessary to avoid any mis-interpretation. 

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member  
I have been consulted on the proposed amendments to these Contract Standing 
Orders which are intended to enable greater efficiencies within the procurement 
process; ensuring compliance with Public Contract Regulations and that adequate 
controls continue to exist to protect the Council’s interests and reputation.  

 

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies: 

3.1 Contract Standing Orders form part of the Council’s Constitution. 

[No.] 

Agenda Item 8Page 17



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 2 

 

4. Recommendations 

4.1 To consider and agree proposed amendments of the Council’s Contract Standing 
Orders. 

 
4.2 That the Cabinet Procurement Committee recommends the proposed amendments to 

CSOs to the Constitution Review Working Group for endorsement before being put 
before full Council for approval. 

 

 
5. Reason for recommendation(s) 
5.1 Contract Standing Orders set out the rules that must be observed to ensure continued 

compliance with EU and English law and therefore need to be reviewed from time to 
time to ensure they remain “fit for purpose”. 
 

5.2 The Council also needs to achieve significant cost saving efficiencies and in this 
regard, it is proposed to increase the delegated powers of Directors and adjust the 
balance between “requests for quotation” and tendering procedures; whilst ensuring 
sufficient competition to achieve overall best value for the Council. 

 

 
6. Other options considered 
6.1     n/a 
 

 
7. Summary 

7.1 To review and make recommendations for change to Part Four (Rules of 
Procedure Section J– Contract Procedure Rules) of the London Borough of Haringey 
Constitution  
 

8. Chief Financial Officer (s151) Comments 

8.1 Regular review of the Council’s Contract Standing Orders is considered best practice 
 to as a minimum ensure that the Council complies with prevailing procurement law 
 and to clarify the procedures under which officers must work. 
8.2 The proposals recommended make some adjustments to improve the consistency 
 and clarity of the procedures but also make recommendations particularly around the 
 thresholds that tendering should apply and also to levels of delegation.  These later 
 changes are in part being proposed to support the delivery of staffing efficiencies as 
 part of the 2011/12 revenue savings but also as part of an assessment of balance 
 between risk and value for money.  
8.3 As outlined in paragraphs 10 and 13, officers are of the view that sufficient mitigation 
 against risk from these increased thresholds has been built in to the revised 
 procedures. 
8.4 Compliance with the revised CSO’s across the Council will be tested as part of the 

Page 18



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 3 

annual internal audit programme of work. During 2011/12, this will include a specific 
audit review to provide assurance that departments have adequate systems in place 
to ensure compliance with the new CSO limits. In addition, internal audit will work with 
Corporate Procurement to undertake ongoing reviews using expenditure information 
in SAP to ensure that departments’ expenditure complies with the Council’s CSO’s.     

 

9. Head of Legal Services Comments  

9.1 Local authorities have a duty under Section 135 of the Local Government Act 1972 
 to  establish and maintain standing orders with respect to the making of contracts for 
 the supply of goods, works and services. 
   
9.2 The Council has accordingly established Contracts Standing Orders which are 
 contained within the Council’s Constitution (Part 4, Section J).  
 
9.3 In order to ensure their continued suitability, the current Contract Standing Orders 
      have been reviewed, and a number of amendments to the provisions have been 
      identified. 
 
9.4 It is proposed to raise the level at which a competitive tender needs to take place 

 from £25k to £100k. It will be necessary to ensure that this complies with general EU 
procurement law principles, particularly the   obligation for transparency. The Head of 
Procurement has confirmed that there will be a sufficient degree of advertising based 
on the circumstances of each case to allow the procurement to be opened up to 
competition and the impartiality of procedures to be reviewed.  

 

9.5 The Head of Legal Services has been involved in the review of the Council’s 
 Contract Standing Orders and supports the recommendation to amend them. 

9.6 Under Part 2, Art 4.2(a) of the Council’s Constitution, full Council has the power to 
 approve amendments to the Constitution (including Contract Standing Orders). Part 
 2, Article 15.3(a) of the Constitution however provides that full Council should 
 approve amendments to the Constitution following recommendation of the proposals 
 by the Constitution Review Working Group. 
 
9.7 The Head of Legal Services sees no legal reasons preventing members from 

approving the recommendations 
 
 

10. Head of Procurement Comments (provided by Head of Supplies & Services) 

10.1 Contract Standing Orders are the rules by which the Council procures works, goods 
and services. These rules are designed to ensure compliance with prevailing 
procurement law and best practice and to set out a framework within which all 
Council officers must work. 

 
10.2 It is necessary from time to time to review CSO’s to ensure their continued 

Page 19



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 4 

relevance and to address any queries or uncertainty raised by officers in application 
and/or interpretation. 

 
10.3 The proposed changes contained within this report will provide alignment of 

delegated powers of authority across the CSOs and also raise the threshold at 
which tendering procedures are to be applied. These changes will enable staff cost 
efficiencies to be achieved. 

 
10.4 The Head of Suppliers and Services is therefore satisfied that the recommendations 

in this report will ensure continued good governance and compliance. 
 

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

11.1 The Council is committed to using procurement as a strategic tool for promoting 
equality of opportunity in terms of both the range of suppliers we do business with 
and in terms of ensuring that services provided by contractors reach all sections of 
the community that are entitled to them. In addition to this policy stance, the Council 
has a Guide to Equality in Procurement, which sets out detailed guidance on how to 
ensure that equalities principles and relevant issues are identified and included in all 
key stages of the procurement.  

 
11.2 Together, the Equal Opportunities Policy and the Guide to ensuring equality in 

procurement are reflected in the Council’s current Procurement Strategy which 
guides all procurement activities in Haringey. 

 
11.3 Contract Standing Orders deal with procedural matters and roles and 

responsibilities. From equalities standpoint, the important thing is that all 
procurement activities will take account of the Council’s equal opportunities policy 
and the Guide referred to above and will therefore have due regards to our Equality 
Act 2010 public sector equality duty. 

 
11.4 It is therefore not anticipated that these amendments to the CSOs will have any 

adverse impacts as equalities measures are built into the over-arching procurement 
strategy which direct procurement activities. 

 
11.5 An equalities screening tool has been applied to the review of Contract Standing 

Orders and concludes that in view of the comments above, does not require a full 
equalities impact assessment. 

 
11.6 To ensure transparency under EU procurement law principles (as stated in 9.4) 

there should be a monitoring and review process for awarding of contracts/funding 
established, to make sure that groups with protected characteristics are treated 
equally and consistently. 

12. Consultation  

12.1 Chief Officers and their management teams have been afforded the opportunity to 

Page 20



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 5 

comment on these proposed changes. 
 
12.2 These matters will also be discussed at the Council Advisory Board. 
 

13. Service Financial Comments 

13.1 The only financial risk identified as a result of the proposed changes would apply to 
 procurement below the amount at which Central Procurement would become      
        involved (£50k) if the business units should not follow procedures that would         
        provide best value for the Council. This has been mitigated by the Head of      

Procurement reserving the right to determine another process for selecting a               
contactor that will meet the best value criteria. The decision and process in such 
cases must be  properly documented 

 

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

14.1 n/a 
 

 

Background Information 

 
15.1 s 135 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires local authorities to 

 establish and maintain standing orders with respect to the making of 
 contracts for the supply of works, goods and services. It further sets out 
     the expectation for securing contracts by way of competition. 

   
15.2 Contract Procedure Rules commonly referred to as Contract Standing 

 Orders are contained within Haringey’s Constitution and is the legal 
 instrument by which the Council adheres to its legal duty. 

 
15.2.1 The Constitution allows the Constitution Review Working Group to 

consider amendments to Contract Standing Orders and to make 
recommendations to full Council accordingly. 

 
 
 

16. Proposed Amendments 
 
CSOs have been renumbered and grouped more logically to redress 
cumulative changes over the years. Since re-numbering has no material 
effect to CSOs, they have not been highlighted and all of the following 
proposed changes therefore use the new numbering scheme.  
 
Material changes to text have been explained (by means of underlining) 
and any deleted text shown in the bubbles in the right-hand margin. 

Page 21



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 6 

 
An index to CSOs is included for the first time because one has not 
existed previously. 
 

 Statement of Principles 
Principle 0.3: “Officers” are included in the list of recipients to whom the 
Head of Procurement must make available, the latest version Contract 
Standing Orders. 
 
Principle 0.4: emphasises the need for “optimal” value 
 
Principle 0.5 (and CSO 3.02a): replace “legislation” with “law” which is a 
term that includes both legislation and case law. 
 
Principle 0.6: is deleted as meaningless, because if officers follow the 
Contract Standing Orders and Procurement Code of Practice, then they 
are meeting their individual and collective responsibilities. 
 
Introduction 
 
CSO 1.02 – includes reference to the need to report any attempted bribery 
(in support of the new UK Bribery Act 2010). 
 

 Definitions and Interpretations 
 

2.02a (and (c) deleted) – reflects the change of title of the General 
Manager at the Alexandra Palace and Park Charitable Trust to that of 
Chief Executive. 
 
2.02c – added:- Specific reference to Statutory Instrument No5 and 
making clear that these are amended from time to time.  
 
Accordingly, previous references to “Public Contract Regulations 2006” 
have been simplified throughout to read “Public Contract Regulations” so 
as to embrace other such regulations without the need to list them 
individually. 
 
2.04 – making it clearer to seek advice from the Head of Procurement 
when necessary 
 
 

 Roles & Responsibilities 
  

CSO 3.01 the value of contract extensions and variations that must be 
approved by Cabinet Procurement Committee is increased to align with 
the value of contract awards; thereby increasing the delegated powers of 
Directors from £150k to £250k. 

Page 22



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 7 

 
Also, a need to include any additional extensions and variations, valued 
over £500,000 in the Council’s Forward Plan is introduced. 
 
CSO 3.03 delete “tendered and” because Directors should be responsible 
for all contracts whether awarded through tendering or requests for 
quotation. 
 
CSO 3.03l: makes it clear that Legal Service only keep “sealed” contracts, 
otherwise contracts are filed and managed by contract managers. 
 
CSO 3.03o: sufficient budget must be confirmed “beforehand” to any 
contract award. 
 
CSO 3.04: the powers of the Pensions Committee are explicitly extended 
to include contract extensions and variations and thus ensure clearer 
alignment with the powers of the Cabinet Procurement Committee. 
 
 

 EU Public Procurement Directives 
 
CSO 5.02b clarifying the that 10 day notice period only applies when 
notice is served electronically, otherwise alternative timescales will apply 
by reference to Public Contract Regulations. 
 
 

 Contract Value and Aggregation 
 
CSO 6.01 the proposed amendment replaces “anticipated costs” with 
“contract value” to simplify the requirement and avoid any 
misunderstanding because “costs” imply the cost of managing the 
procurement (and which are outside of procurement regulations). 
 
 

 Procedure for Contracts below £100,000 
 
General Comment 
 
It is evident that existing CSO’s inadequately safeguard competitive bids 
that are received through the quotation process.  Currently prices can be 
viewed as they are received from each bidder.  To address the matter, 
CSO 8.01 to CSO 9.07 have been amended to replace the word “tenders” 
with “bids” (to thus include both tenders and quotations) AND a specific 
link is made at 8.03 to the need at 9.02 - 9.04 for quotation prices to be 
held secure until a stated date and time for opening. 
 

Page 23



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 8 

CSO 8.02 the threshold under which a quotation process can be followed 
is raised from £25k to £100k (with split values in a new CSO 8.03) along 
with a new requirement to obtain “at least three competitive quotations 
from selected contractors without the need to advertise”. This change is 
necessary to relieve the administrative burden and related costs of running 
tendering exercises as recommended in the Council’s Support Functions 
Review. 
 
CSO 8.03 the effect of the new rule is for quotations valued below £50k to 
be managed in departments, but any valued between £50k - £100k are to 
be managed centrally by the Head of Procurement. This reflects the 
centralisation of procurement staff under the Council’s Support Function 
Review. 
 
CSO 8.04 mirrors CSO 9.01e but for use in relation to the contracts valued 
below £100k. 
 
CSO 8.05 - the decision as to which procurement methods and processes 
to apply is explicitly delegated to the Head of Procurement. 
 
 

 Procedure for Contracts above £100,000 
 
CSO 9 the threshold above which a tendering process must be followed is 
raised to £100k. 
 
CSO 9.01 g) and h) – deleted because these form part of the standard 
legal boilerplates from which contracts are compiled and are only two 
examples of the many clauses contained therein. There is no reason to 
specify these two examples over the many others e.g. data protection, 
child protection etc 
 
CSO 9.02.3 and 9.03.3 – the need for two independent officers to open 
bids is reduced to one independent officer plus the procurement officer, to 
reflect the significant reduction in Council staffing levels. 
 
CSO 9.02 - 9.04 – the phrase “tenders” has been generally replaced with 
“bids” to embrace both tenders and quotations and thus ensure the 
necessary controls apply to both processes. 
 
CSO 9.03.3 to open an electronic file “simultaneously” using different 
passwords is not practical therefore the CSO is amended to reflect the 
need for two officers to “be present” at the time of opening the file. 
 
CSO 9.04.1 in practical terms, it is impossible to adequately record any 
non-compliant bids without opening the envelopes to identify the bidder 

Page 24



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 9 

involved since there must be no visible identification marks on the 
envelope. Therefore replace “unopened” with “late”. 
 
CSO 9.04.2 deletion of “without any contact with the contractor” removes 
the absolute criteria and allows some flexibility to reflect practicalities. 
 
CSO 9.06.1c – explicit delegation of power to the Head of Procurement.  
 
CSO 9.07.1f – “care packages” has been added for clarity and as relating 
to “spot contracts”. 
 
CSO 9.07.1g delete the cross reference because it is unnecessary. 
 
CSO 9.08 simplified title. 
 
CSO 9.08.1 this new requirement is considered necessary as a 
consequence of the Public Procurement (Remedies) Directive 2009 and is 
intended to offer the Council some degree of safeguard in the unlikely 
evident that a Court declares an award of contract to be “ineffective”.  
 
CSO 9.08.2 The figure of £50 (fifty) is replaced with £5,000 since the lower 
figure was totally inappropriate. The cost of producing contract 
documentation must be taken into account, hence the increased threshold. 
 
CSO 9.08.4 – mention of Purchasing Cards is included. 
 
CSO 9.08.5g – explicit requirement to protect personal data re: Data 
Protection Act. 
 
CSO 9.08.8 the value of contracts into which specific clauses must be 
inserted is raised. This will have the effect of further efficiencies through 
reduced legal costs. 
 
CSO 9.08.9 – whilst lower value contracts do not normally require sealing 
(sealed = valid for 12 years as opposed to being unsealed = 6 years), we 
must have due consideration to latent defects and thus an allowance is 
made for some flexibility in regard to risk.  
  
CSO 9.08.10 – contracts valued over £250k must be sealed. 
  
CSO 9.08.12 establishes a value above which bonds or parent company 
guarantees may apply. 
 
 
Waivers, Variations, Extensions and Novations 
 
CSO 10.01.1 the whole sentence has been simplified for ease of reading. 

Page 25



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 10

 
 
CSO 10.01.1b the delegated powers of Directors to waive CSOs is 
increased from £50k to £250k to align with the threshold for contract 
award powers of Cabinet Procurement Committee and which as a result 
negates the need for CSO10.01.1c (thereby deleted). 
 
CSO 10.01.1c delete in favour of increased delegated powers of Directors. 
 
CSO 10.01.2 delete “by the appropriate officer” since this is repetition 
within the sentence, and include “demonstrates” as a lead-in to the 
subsequent sub-paragraphs. 
 
CSO10.01.2 delete “demonstrated to be” in favour of the line above which 
now embraces all the requirements of CSO10. 
 
CSO 10.01.03 new CSO to emphasis the need for waiver requests to be 
approved before contracts are awarded, or variations or extensions 
agreed. 
 
CSO 10.01.5 – to avoid low value waiver requests being considered by 
Cabinet Procurement Committee, the “regardless of value” criteria is 
replaced with a delegated power for a Member of that Committee to agree 
second waiver requests up a value of £50k. 
 
CSO 10.02 cross reference added to CSO 3.01.03 to clarify that Cabinet 
Procurement Committee and not the Director must approve any 
extensions over £250,000 
 
CSO 10.02.1a – delete the need to report “to the relevant Cabinet 
Procurement Committee Member” on contract performance in respect of 
those cases of Director approved contract variations and extensions. 
 
A Director may agree a contract extension valued over £250k if such 
extension(s) had been included in a previous contract award decision 
taken by Cabinet Procurement Committee. 
 
CSO 10.02.3 increase the delegated powers of Directors from £150k to 
£250k for the award of contract variations. 
 
CSO 10.03 delete the cross reference because it is unnecessary. 
 
CSO 12 - a collective schools body cannot have the same powers as an 
individual Director, therefore the schools body is aligned to an equivalent 
collective body in the Council, which in this case is the Cabinet 
Procurement Committee. 
 

Page 26



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 11

CSO 13 The departmental tiles of Adults services and Childrens services 
have been changes to reflect the new Council organisation. 
 
Also, delete “maximise the use of block contracts” in favour of seeking 
“optimum overall best value” thus allowing more freedom to manage 
overall strategies. 
 
CSO 13b - delete “and formation of contracts” due to being superfluous. 
 
CSO 13d - as an efficiency, the need to produce monthly reports to the 
relevant Cabinet Member is relaxed in favour of reporting bi-annually. 
 
CSO 16 (OLD) – this related to proprietary products, but is a repetition of 
CSO 9.01f and is therefore deleted. 
 
CSO15.05 - the need to seek the prior approval of Cabinet Procurement 
Committee for the disposal of assets is replaced with a requirement to 
report on the results of disposal.  
 
Also the threshold values for reporting are increased from £150k to £250k 
to align with the general delegated powers of Directors contained within 
CSOs. 
 

17. Implications 

The Councils’ CSOs are maintained to ensure the most cost efficient processes 
are applied and in accord with known best practice. 

 

 

Page 27



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 12

PART FOUR – RULES OF PROCEDURE Section J– Contract Procedure Rules  

 Part Four, Section J  
Contract Procedure Rules  

 
0.  Statement of Principle .................................................. 15 
 0.1         15 
 0.2         15 
 0.3         15 
 0.4         15 
 0.5         15 
 0.6         15 
 0.7         15 
 0.8         15 
 0.9         15 

1.  Introduction................................................................... 16 
 1.01         16 
 1.02         16 
 1.03         16 
2.  Definitions and Interpretation ..................................... 16 
 2.01         16 
 2.02.         16 
 2.03         16 
 2.04         17 
3.  Roles & Responsibilities .............................................. 17 
 3.01 Cabinet Procurement Committee    17 
 3.02  Constitution Review Working Group   17 
 3.03  Directors       17 
 3.04 Pensions Committee     18 
4.  Scope of Contract Standing Orders............................ 18 
 4.01         18 
 4.02         18 
 4.03         18 
5.  EU Public Procurement Directives.............................. 19 
 5.01         19 
 5.02         19 
 5.03         19 
6.   Contract Value and Aggregation ................................. 19 
 6.01         19 
 6.02         19 
 6.03         19 
7.  Framework and Consortia Arrangements .................. 20 
 7.01         20 
 7.02         20 
 7.03         20 
8.   Quotation Procedure for Contracts below £100,000.. 20 
 8.01         20 

Page 28



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 13

 8.02         20 
 8.03         20 
 8.04         20 
 8.05         21 
9 Procedure for Contract valued above £100,00 ........... 21 
 9.01         21 
 9.02         22 
 9.02.1         22 
 9.02.3         22 
 9.02.4         22 
 9.03 E-Bids        22 
 9.03.1         22 
 9.03.2         22 
 9.03.3         22 
 9.04 Late or Non Compliant Bids    23 
 9.04.1         23 
 9.04.2         23 
 9.05 E-Auctions       23  
 9.06 Post Tender Negotiations     23 
 9.06.1         23 
 9.06.2         23 
 9.06.3         23 
 9.07. Bid Acceptance and Contract Award   23 
 9.07.1         23 
 9.08 Conditions applying to all contracts:   24  
 9.08.1         24 
 9.08.2         24 
 9.08.3         24 
 9.08.4         24 
 9.08.5         24 
 9.08.6         25 
 9.08.7         25 
 9.08.8         25   
 9.08.9         26 
 9.08.10        26 
 9.08.11        26 
 9.08.12        26 
10. Waivers, Variations, Extensions and Novations ........ 26 
 10.01 Waivers       26 
 10.01.1        26 
 10.01.2        27 
 10.01.3        27 
 10.01.4        27 
 10.01.5        27 
 10.02 Variations and Extension     27 
 10.02.1        27 
 10.02.2        28 

Page 29



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 14

 10.02.3        28 
 10.02.4        28 
 10.03         28 
11 Contract Termination.................................................... 28 
11.01           28 
11.02   Variations and Extension     28 
11.03          28 
12. Schools.......................................................................... 29 
13. Care Contracts for Individuals..................................... 29 
14 Alexandra Palace and Park .......................................... 29 
15.  Disposal of assets ........................................................ 30 
16.  Urgent Decisions .......................................................... 31 
16.01          31 
16.02          31 
16.03          31 
 

Page 30



  
 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 Page 15 

0.  Statement of Principles 

0.1 The Contract Standing Orders provide the framework rules for the Council’s 
procurement of works, goods and services. Following them will ensure value for 
money, propriety and the proper spending of public money.  

0.2 The Procurement Code of Practice provides more detail and shall govern 
Council tendering and contract procedures. The Director of Corporate Resources 
and Head of Procurement shall maintain and issue the Procurement Code of 
Practice. Any procurement activity shall proceed in accordance with the Contract 
Standing Orders and the Procurement Code of Practice and all such other 
guidance issued by the Head of Procurement.  

0.3 The Head of Procurement shall make the latest version of the Contract Standing 
Orders and the Procurement Code of Practice available to every Director, 
Member and officer of the Council. Directors, or officers acting on their behalf, 
shall apply the requirements of the Contract Standing Orders and the 
Procurement Code of Practice when engaging in any procurement activity.  

0.4 The purpose of procurement activity shall be to achieve best value in accordance 
with the Council’s statutory or approved objectives. This should include an 
innovative approach to building partnerships with the private and not-for-profit 
sectors and collaborating with other public sector bodies within a robust 
contractual framework. Officers with responsibility for procurement shall ensure 
that they are able to demonstrate achievement of best value with regards the 
optimal  combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  

0.5 Every contract or official order for works, goods or services made by the Council 
shall be for the purpose of achieving the Council’s statutory or approved 
objectives and shall conform to all relevant English and European Union law.  

  

0.6.Directors shall ensure that the Cabinet, Cabinet Procurement Committee or 
appropriate Member of the Cabinet or Cabinet Procurement Committee is 
consulted on any procurement activity prior to its publication in the Council’s 
Forward Plan.  

0.7.Directors must ensure that audit trails are in place for all procurement activity in 
accordance with the Procurement Code of Practice.  

0.8.No Member shall enter into any contract on the Council’s behalf.  

0.9.No Member shall be permitted to become security under any agreement 
between the Council and a contractor employed by it.  

 

 

 

Page 31



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 16

 

CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS  

1.  Introduction  

1.01.   Procurement decisions are among the most important decisions a manager 
will make because the money involved is public money and the Council is 
required to ensure that best value works, goods and services are provided. 
Efficient use of resources in order to achieve best value is therefore an 
imperative. The Council's reputation is equally important and should be 
safeguarded from any imputation of dishonesty or corruption.  

 
1.02.   For these reasons it is a disciplinary offence to fail to comply with Contract 

Standing Orders and the Procurement Code of Practice when letting 
contracts. Employees have a duty to report breaches of Contract Standing 
Orders to an appropriate senior manager and the Head of Audit & Risk.  

 
1.03.   Reference should be made to the Procurement Code of Practice for more 

detailed procurement procedures.  
 
 

2.     Definitions and Interpretation 

2.01.  These Contract Standing Orders are made pursuant to section 135 of the 
 Local Government Act 1972 and shall come into force with this Constitution.  

 
2.02.  Unless the context otherwise requires, in these Contract Standing Orders 

the terms below shall have the meanings ascribed to them.  

a) "Director" means an employee of the Council (inc Alexandra Palace and 
Park Charitable Trust) holding a post designated as Director, Chief 
Executive or Assistant Chief Executive. 

  
 b) "EU" means European Union. 
 

c) “Public Contract Regulations” means the Public Contract Regulations 
2006 SI 2006 No. 5 as amended from time to time.  

 
 
2.03.  In the event of any conflict between EU law, English law and Council policy, 

the requirements of EU law shall prevail over English law and the 
requirements of English law shall prevail over Council policy.  

 
2.04.  In the event of any doubt as to the interpretation of these Contract Standing 

Orders or the Procurement Code of Practice, or as to the proper procedure 
to be followed, clarification should be sought from the Head of Procurement. 

Page 32



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 17

 

3.  Roles & Responsibilities  
3.01 Cabinet Procurement Committee will: 

a) hold Directors accountable for any decisions they make under their 
delegated authority or under these Contract Standing  Orders.  
 
b) approve award of contract including any options to extend that are set 
out within the original contract and valued over £250,000 (two hundred and 
fifty thousand). 
 
c) approve any variations or extensions valued over £250,000 (two hundred 
and fifty thousand) that are not covered in the original decision taken in b) 
above. 
 
d)  ensure that the award of any contract and any extension (not included in 
the original decision) or variation valued over £500,000 (five hundred 
thousand) is a 'key decision' and as such must be in the Council's Forward 
Plan and comply with the other procedures in that regard set out in the 
Constitution. 
  
 

3.02    Constitution Review Working Group 
 The Constitution Review Working Group will keep under review these 

Contract Standing Orders and recommend amendments to full Council for 
adoption.  

 
 

3.03  Directors 
The Director has responsibility for all contracts let under his/her control. 
He/she is accountable to the Cabinet for the performance of their duties in 
relation to contract letting and management, which are:  
a) to ensure compliance with English and EU law and Council Policy;  
b) to ensure value for money in all procurement matters;  
c) to ensure compliance with Contract Standing Orders and the 
Procurement Code of Practice;  
d) to maintain a departmental scheme of delegation;  
e) to ensure that all relevant officers are familiar with the provisions of 
Contract Standing Orders and the Procurement Code of Practice and that 
they receive adequate training on their operation;  
f) to ensure compliance with any guidelines issued in respect of these 
Contract Standing Orders;  
g) to take immediate action in the event of a breach of Contract Standing 
Orders or the Procurement Code of Practice within his or her area;  
h) to keep proper records of all bids and contracts etc. including minutes of 
tender evaluation panels and other meetings;  
i) to keep records of waivers of any provision of these Contract Standing 
Orders;  
j) to make appropriate arrangements for the opening of bids and their 
secure retention so as to protect the integrity of the procurement process;  

Page 33



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 18

k) to ensure that the Council's seal is affixed to any document required to 
be executed as a deed and that where a document is not expressed to be 
under seal, it is signed by two people as provided for in these Contract 
Standing Orders;  
l) to ensure original sealed contract documents are held by the Head of 
Legal Services for safekeeping;  
m) to record all contracts in the Contracts Register;  
n) to ensure effective management of all contracts under his/her control and 
to a level deemed appropriate in regard to risk or value of each contract. 
o) no contract shall be let unless the expenditure involved has been fully 
considered and approved beforehand and sufficient money has been 
allocated in the relevant budget.  
 

   
  3.04  Pensions Committee 

The Pensions Committee shall have the same powers and duties of the 
Cabinet Procurement Committee specified in these Contract Standing 
Orders but limited to procurement decisions and award of contract and any 
extension or variation relating to the Pension Fund. 

 
 
4.  Scope of Contract Standing Orders 
4.01.  These Contract Standing Orders shall apply to all contracts for the 

procurement by the Council of works, goods and services unless otherwise 
expressly stated or these requirements are waived in accordance with  

   CSO 10.  
 
4.02.  Where the Council secures funding from an external funding body, and the 

funding is conditional upon the grant monies being used to facilitate service 
delivery, Contract Standing Orders shall apply to procurement by the 
Council of the works, goods, and services to facilitate the service delivery.  

 
4.03.  These Contract Standing Orders shall not apply to contracts of 

employment, or to contracts relating to any interest in land. For the 
avoidance of doubt, there are excluded from these Contract Standing 
Orders any agreement relating to the provision of nomination rights to 
housing, collateral management arrangements in respect of social housing 
and the acquisition of rights or benefits pursuant to the Council's Private 
Sector Temporary Accommodation Leasing Scheme. 

 
 
5.  EU Public Procurement Directives   
5.01  Where the value of a works, goods or services contract is equal to, or 

exceeds, the applicable threshold in relation to  the Public Contracts 
Regulations, the provisions of those Regulations shall govern the tendering 
process and shall take precedence over the provisions of these Contract 
Standing Orders in the event of any conflict.  
 

Page 34



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 19

5.02.  In respect of contracts to which Public Contract Regulations apply:  
a) where the tender is for appointment to a Framework Agreement, the total 
period of the Framework Agreement including any possible extension, shall 
not exceed four years except in exceptional circumstances relating to the 
subject of the Framework Agreement;  
b) all bidders must be notified in writing of a tender selection decision by the 
Council at least 10 (ten) calendar days prior to the proposed contract award 
date, provided notification is by facsimile or electronic means. Where the 
last day of this ten-day notice period falls on a non-working day, the period 
must be extended to include the next working day. Where notification is not 
by facsimile or electronic means, the notice period shall be in accordance 
with the timeframes required by the Public Contract Regulations. 

 
5.03.  Where the subject matter of a contract is not exempt under the Public 

Contract Regulations and when, for technical or artistic reasons, or for 
reasons connected with the protection of exclusive rights, it may be 
awarded only to a particular contractor, a negotiated procedure without prior 
publication of a contract notice may be used for such award  

 
 
6.   Contract Value and Aggregation 
6.01.  Directors must ensure that a pre-tender estimate of the contract value is 

prepared and recorded in writing and in order to determine whether the 
thresholds under the Public Contract Regulations apply.  

 
6.02.  Unless otherwise specifically provided, reference to contract value or an 

estimated contract value in these Contract Standing Orders means the 
aggregate value payable in pounds sterling exclusive of Value Added Tax 
over the entire contract period, including any extension periods as 
anticipated in the proposed contract.  

 
6.03.  Contracts must not be artificially under or over estimated or divided into two 

or more separate contracts where the effect is to avoid the application of 
Contract Standing Orders or the Public Contract Regulations. 

 
 
7.  Framework and Consortia Arrangements 
7.01.  Subject to the provision of CSO 7.02, these Contract Standing Orders shall 

not apply where the Council procures particular works, goods and services:  
 

 a) as part of a group of public sector bodies contracting with one or  
 more contractors (consortium arrangement), provided the contract standing  

orders of one of the public sector bodies constituting the group and/ or 
where applicable the Public Contract Regulations have been followed,  

 or  
 b) by selecting one or more contractors from a Framework or similar  

arrangement (including approved lists), established by a public sector body 

Page 35



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 20

in accordance with the contract standing orders of that public sector body 
and/ or where applicable the Public Contract Regulations.   

 
7.02.  The Council's decision to enter into a contract with the recommended 

 contractor must be made in accordance with CSO 9.07. 
  
7.03.  The Council shall observe these Contract Standing Orders where it 

procures works, goods and services for the benefit, or on behalf of, other 
public bodies.  

 
 
 

8.   Procedure for Contracts valued below £100,000 
8.01.  Where a contract has an estimated value of less than £5,000 (five thousand), 

the relevant Director should act in the manner most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service, having kept a record for so doing. 

 
8.02.  Where a contract has an estimated value of more than £5,000 (five 

thousand), but less than £100,000  (  one hundred thousand), at least three 
competitive quotations should be obtained from chosen contractors without 
the need for an advertisement or the tender procedure followed.  

 
8.03. The quotation procedure shall replicate CSO 9.02-9.04 and be managed by 

the: 
   

a) relevant Director where the estimated value of the contract is more than 
£5,000 (five thousand) but less than £50,000 (fifty thousand). 

 
 b) Head of Procurement where the estimated value of the contract is more 

than £50,000 (fifty thousand) but less than £100,000 (one hundred thousand). 
 
 
8.04. Where a pre-qualified Framework arrangement (including approved lists) 

exists in respect of the subject matter and prices have yet to be determined 
then CSO 9.01e applies. 

 
 

 8.05. The Head of Procurement may decide that processes in CSO 8 are not 
appropriate in order to secure value for money for the Council and to ensure 
general EU procurement law principles are complied with. If that is the case, 
he/she may determine another process of selecting a contractor which will 
meet best value criteria. The decision and process must be properly 
documented. 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 36



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 21

9. Procedure for Contracts valued above £100,000 
9.01. Except as otherwise provided, contracts with an estimated value of 

£100,000 (one hundred thousand) or more must be let following publication 
of an appropriate (tender) advertisement.  

 
Where tenders are to be invited the procedure to be followed shall be 
determined prior to advertising and shall be one of the following:  
a) open tender (all interested contractors submit a tender in response to an 
advertisement);  
b) restricted procedure (expressions of interest from interested contractors 
in response to an advertisement, with a selection of those contractors being 
invited to submit a tender);  
c)  negotiated procedure (expressions of interest from interested contractors 
in response to an advertisement, with a selection of those contractors being 
invited to negotiate);  
d)  competitive dialogue (expressions of interest from interested contractors 
in response to an advertisement, followed by dialogue with a selection of 
those contractors to identify a solution (or solutions) which meets the 
Council’s requirements, and an invitation to the selected contractors to 
submit tenders based on the solution/s resulting from the dialogue);  
e) Where it is proposed to award a specific contract based on a framework 
agreement in which all the terms of the proposed contract are not laid down, 
a mini- competition shall be held in which tenders shall be invited from all 
members of the framework agreement which are capable of carrying out the 
requirements of the specific contract. 
f) single tender where the relevant goods are a proprietary product and/or 
the relevant services relate to such a product and  for technical or artistic 
reasons, or for reasons connected with the protection of exclusive rights, 
the contract may be awarded only to a particular contractor. The Director of 
Corporate Resources must first be consulted before this procedure is used. 
Where applicable, use of this procedure must be compliant with the Public 
Contract Regulations. Where this procedure is used, an advertisement is 
not required. 
 

9.02  Receipt and Opening of Bids  

9.02.1.  Other than when electronic procedures are followed (CSO9.03) contractors 
must be informed that their bids will only be considered if they are:  
a) sent in a plain envelope or parcel with a label on which is printed either 
with the word "Tender" or “Quotation” followed by the subject of the 
contract; and  
b) contained in a sealed envelope or parcel which does not show the 
identity of the contractor in any way;  
and  
c) delivered to the place and by the date and time stated in the invitation.   

 
9.02.2.  Bids must be kept safe until the date and time for their opening by the 

officers given this duty by the Director responsible for the process.   
 

Page 37



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 22

9.02.3.  Bids for a particular contract must be opened at the same time in the 
presence of two officers, one of whom has had no involvement in the 
process. These officers shall be responsible for properly recording the price, 
duration of any works and all other relevant details of each opened bid.  

 
9.02.4.  The Head of Procurement must approve the training and seniority of all 

officers employed to open bids and also the arrangements in each 
Directorate for ensuring the independence of such officers from the teams 
involved in the competitive process.  

 
 
 
9.03 E- Bids  
9.03.1  Invitations to bid may be dispatched, and responses received, by electronic 

means with the prior approval of, and in accordance with a procedure 
specified by the Head of Procurement.  

9.03.2.  Bids received electronically must be stored securely, and must not be 
accessible until after the closing date and time in respect of submission of 
the bids. 

 
9.03.3.  At an appointed time for opening the electronically submitted bids, two 

authorised officers, one of whom has had no involvement in the process, 
shall both be present to access the submitted bids, and record the price, 
duration of any works and all other relevant details of each opened bid.  

 
 
9.04 Late or Non Compliant Bids 
9.04.1. Records of any non-compliant bids and of the date and time of receipt of any 

late tenders must be kept by officers. 
    

9.04.2. Bids received late may only be considered if the other bids have not yet been 
 opened and:  

a) failure to comply is the Council's fault; or  
b) it is clear that the bid was sent in such a way that in the normal course of 
events it would have arrived on time. 

9.05 E-Auctions  
  In appropriate cases, the submission of prices for a bid may be 

 conducted by e-auction using an on-line facility, with the prior approval of, 
 and in accordance with a procedure specified by the Head of Procurement.  

9.06 Post Tender Negotiations  

9.06.1.  Except where the negotiated procedure referred to in CSO 9.01c and 9.01f 
applies, negotiation after receipt of formal bids and before the award of 
contract is only permitted:  
a) with those contractors submitting the most economically advantageous 
bid, and  

Page 38



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 23

b) with a view to obtaining an improvement in content in circumstances 
which do not put other contractors at a disadvantage, distort competition or 
adversely affect trust in the competitive process, and  
c) if the prior authority of the Head of Procurement has been obtained. 
  

9.06.2. There may be circumstances where an officer authorised by the Director 
may contact a contractor in order to clarify an ambiguous bid. This does not 
constitute post tender negotiations. 
 

9.06.3.  All communication with contractors under this Contract Standing Order must 
be in writing or recorded in writing.  

9.07 Bid Acceptance and Contract Award  

9.07.1.  Bids are to be accepted on the basis of either:  
a) The lowest price;  

 or 

b) The most economically advantageous tender (i.e. the tender providing 
the most benefit to the Council) as determined by such criteria, to include 
whole life costing methodologies, as are relevant to the type of works, 
goods or services.  

   
c) A Director may award, assign, or novate contracts valued at £250,000 
(two hundred and fifty thousand) or less.  

  
d) Subject to the provisions of CSO 9.07.1g, all contracts valued over 
£250,000 (two hundred and fifty thousand) at the time of award may only be 
awarded, assigned, or novated by the Cabinet Procurement Committee.  

  
e) The award of any contract valued at over £500,000 (five hundred 
thousand pounds) is a 'key decision' and as such must be in the Council's 
Forward Plan and comply with the other procedures in that regard set out in 
the Constitution.  
 
f) In accordance with Part 5 Section C of the Constitution, the award of spot 
contracts for care packages and contracts for the supply of energy to the 
Council are not “key decisions”. 
  

 g) Contracts for the supply of energy to the Council valued over £250,000 
may be awarded by a Director.  
 

9.08. Conditions applying to all contracts:  

9.08.1. The tender documents in respect of every contract to which the Public 
Contract Regulations apply shall include a requirement that the successful 
contractor must enter into a collateral contract in a form approved by the 
Head of Legal Services which provides for the allocation of risks between the 
parties where the contract has been declared ineffective by a court. 

 

Page 39



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 24

 
Valued £5,000 or more: 
9.08.2. Except as provided in CSO 9.08.4, all contracts above £5,000 (five  

thousand) in value must be in writing by way of a document prepared, or on a 
basis approved, by the Head of Legal Services.  

9.08.3. Where the works, goods or services to be provided under a contract are 
required to commence prior to the issuance and execution of a formal 
contract, a Director, if satisfied that it is in the Council’s best interest in the 
particular circumstances, may approve issuance of a Letter of Intent pending 
the issuance and execution of a formal contract. However, the maximum 
cover afforded by any Letter of Intent shall not exceed 10% of the contract 
price in respect of works or services contracts, or £50,000 in respect of 
supplies contracts.  

9.08.4. A contract made in extreme urgency or a contract for goods or services 
resulting from a purchase using a Council purchase card need not be in 
writing so long as it is confirmed in writing within four weeks. 

 
9.08.5. Every contract shall specify:  

a) the works, goods or services to be provided or executed;  
b) the price to be paid or the precise method of its ascertainment and a 

statement of any discounts or other deductions; and  
d) as appropriate, the start and finish dates, or delivery dates, and any 
maintenance or defects liability period.  
e) compliance with the Council’s insurance requirements. The 
requirement to comply with the Councils standard insurance requirements 
may only be waived with the Director of Corporate Resource’s approval.  
f) compliance with the Council’s equality policy. 
g) compliance with regards the protection of personal data. 

 
9.08.6. All contracts for the provision of services which may potentially involve 

either direct contact with children and vulnerable adults or access to their 
personal records shall contain a provision requiring the service provider 
(including agents and assigns) to undertake a Criminal Records Bureau 
check on relevant employees prior to provision of the services under the 
contract and at appropriate intervals thereafter.   

 
9.08.7.  All computer software contracts shall contain a clause to the effect that use 

of the software by the Council's contractors shall not amount to use by a 
third party for which an additional software licence might otherwise be 
required.  

 
 
Valued £25,000 or more: 
9.08.8. Every contract with a value of £25,000 (twenty five thousand) or more must 

unless the Head of Legal Services and Director of Corporate Resources 
agree to the contrary contain clauses to cover the following:  

Page 40



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 25

 
a) compliance with all applicable legislation;  
 
b) a prohibition on assignment and/or subletting without the written consent 
of the Director;  
 
c) a provision allowing the Council to cancel the contract and recover any 
resulting loss from the contractor if the contractor does anything which is 
contrary to the Prevention of Corruption Acts 1889 to 1916 or incites breach 
of Section 117 (2) of the Local Government Act 1972;  
 
d) a provision to ensure the Council is protected against the contractor's 
defective performance by default provisions which are appropriate to the 
contract;  
 
e) if the contractor is in breach of contract the Council can do any or all of 
the following:  
 

 i. determine all or part of the contract or determine the contractor's 
appointment;  

 ii. itself perform the contract in whole or in part;  
iii. recover from the contractor any additional cost resulting from the 

completion or cancellation of the contract.  
 

f) If the contractor has obtained or received by whatever means any 
information which gives or is intended or likely to give the contractor any 
unfair advantage over any other tenderer (including the Council's own 
workforce) in relation to the tendering for, and award of, any works/services 
contract, that the Council shall be entitled to terminate that contract;  

 
g) It shall be a condition of any contract between the Council and any 
person (not being an Officer of the Council) who is required to manage a 
contract on the Council's behalf that, in relation to such contract, he/she 
shall comply in all respects with the requirements of these Contract 
Standing Orders as if he/she were an employee of the Council.  

 
9.08.9.  A contract up to and including £250,000 (two hundred and fifty thousand) in 

value does not require sealing and should be signed on behalf of the 
Council, by both the relevant Director and by the Head of the relevant 
business unit. However, if the nature of the works, goods or services is such 
as to pose a high risk of significant latent defects, then the Head of 
Procurement may decide to have the contract executed under seal as a 
deed. 

 
 
Valued £250,000 or more: 

9.08.10. A contract over £250,000 (two hundred and fifty thousand) in value must be 
executed on behalf of the Council under seal as a deed.  

Page 41



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 26

 
9.08.11.  Every contract which exceeds £250,000 (two hundred and fifty thousand) in 

value must contain clauses to cover the following:  
a) if it is a contract for works, that the Council may require the contractor to 
provide security for completing the contract in the form of a bond;  
b) that where the contractor is a subsidiary or group company, the 
contractor may be required to provide a parent or group company 
guarantee.  

 
9.08.12. The decision as to whether or not a bond or parent company guarantee will 

be required in respect of a contract that exceeds £250,000 will ultimately be 
made by the Director of Corporate Resources, or an officer acting under 
his/her delegated authority. 

 

10.  Waivers, Variations, Extensions and Novations 
 
10.01  Waivers 
10.01.1. Contract Standing Orders other than CSO 5 (which relates to the Public 

Contract Regulations) may be waived on the basis set out in CSO 10.01.2 
by:   

   a) the Cabinet Procurement Committee where the contract value is more 
than £250,000; or 

 b) a Director where the contract value is £250,000 (two hundred and fifty 
thousand) or less (save that the Director shall not have authority to waive  
CSO 9.08)  

  
10.01.2.  A waiver may be agreed  after considering a written report that 

demonstrates: 
a) the nature of the market for the works to be carried out or the goods or 
services to be provided has been investigated and is such that a departure 
from the requirements of Contract Standing Orders is justifiable; or  
b) the contract is for works, goods or services that are required in 
circumstances of extreme urgency that could not reasonably have been 
foreseen; or  
c) the circumstances of the proposed contract are covered by legislative 
exemptions (whether under EU or English law); or  
d) it is in the Council's overall interest; or  
e) there are other circumstances which are genuinely exceptional.  

 
10.01.3. Waiver requests must be approved before any related contract awards, 

variations or extensions. 
 
10.01.4. A record of the decision approving a waiver and the reasons for it must be 

kept and an entry made in a central register maintained and monitored by 
the Head of Procurement. 

10.01.5.  Where a waiver of Contract Standing Orders is sought for the second time 
in relation to the same individual contract, a Cabinet Procurement 

Page 42



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 27

Committee Member must agree those valued at £50,000 (fifty thousand) or 
less and be agreed  by the Cabinet Procurement Committee for those 
valued £50,000 (fifty thousand) or more.  

 

 

10.02 Variations and Extension  
10.02.1. Subject to the provisions of CSO 3.01; the Public Contract Regulations 

restrictions and compliance with Financial Regulations, a Director may 
authorise the following:  
a) any extension provided for within the terms of a contract and previously 

included in an award of contract decision taken by Cabinet Procurement 
Committee (but subject to satisfactory outcomes of contract monitoring  

 
 b) or a single extension by up to six months, or half the contract term 

(whichever is less) of the contract not provided for within the original 
contract award decision; and  

 
c) any variation, and if relevant a consequent change in price, determined in 
accordance with the contract terms.  

 
10.02.2. In any other circumstances where the value exceeds £250,000 (two 

hundred and fifty thousand) the Cabinet Procurement Committee may vary 
or extend a contract providing that to do so is consistent with the Public 
Contract Regulations and the Council’s Financial Regulations. 

  
10.02.3. In addition a Director may authorise variations to a contract where either 

delay would incur substantial cost penalties to the Council or the proposed 
variations are unavoidable and/or essential for the contract to proceed or 
continue, and the additional cost of such variations does not exceed 25% of 
the value of the contract, up to a maximum of £250,000 (two hundred and 
fifty thousand). Variations above this level may be authorised by a Director, 
where the Director considers that circumstances require such authorisation, 
as long as such variations are reported to the Cabinet Procurement 
Committee at the earliest opportunity. 

 
10.02.4. All variations and extensions must be recorded in writing.  

10.03  Novations (Transfers)  

 In appropriate circumstances the Council may agree to the novation or 
assignment of a contract. This decision must be taken based on the value 
of the contract at the date of award.  

 
 

11. Contract Termination  

Page 43



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 28

11.01.  In the event of a supplier being declared bankrupt, going into administration, 
receivership or liquidation then a Director may terminate any associated 
contract(s) and initiate alternative arrangements as may be required taking 
into account CSO 10.03 in cases of novation or CSO 4.01 in cases that 
warrant the re-letting of the contract(s).  

 
11.02.  The decision to terminate a contract early in all other circumstances must 

be approved by a Director.  
 
11.03.  In all cases of contract termination for whatever reason where the awarded 

contract value was more than £250,000, a report must be presented at the 
earliest opportunity to Cabinet Procurement Committee.  

 

12. Schools  

 In accordance with the requirements of the Council’s Scheme for 
 Financing Schools, and the Financial Regulations for Schools, where a 
 school acts as an agent for the Council, these Contract Standing Orders 
 apply to all schools within the London Borough of Haringey with the 
 exception of Academy and Trust Schools. A school's governing body 
 shall  have the powers and duties of the Cabinet Procurement Committee 
 specified in these Contract Standing Orders, except in relation to waivers 
 (CSO 10.01). 
 
 
 

13. Care Contracts for Individuals  
  Adults & Housing Services and the Children & Young People’s Service care 

contracts may be 'block' contracts (where a number of beds, places or 
services are provided by the contractor at pre-agreed pricing schedules, to 
which the Council may refer users over the contract period) or 'spot' 
contracts (one-off contracts meeting an individual user's needs, or 
contracts where a number of beds, places or services are provided by the 
contractor without pre-agreed prices, such prices to be agreed upon each 
referral of a user over the contract period). The Directors of the Adult & 
Housing Services and the Children & Young People’s Service will seek to 
optimise overall best value for the Council. The following provisions shall 
apply to the Adult & Housing Services and the Children & Young People’s 
Service care contracts:  

a) All Contract Standing Orders apply to block contracts;  

b) CSO 8.03 (in relation to quotation procedures) shall not apply to spot 
contracts; 

c) The Directors of the Adult & Housing Services and the Children & Young 
People’s Service may award all spot contracts, which shall be reviewed at 
least annually as part of the review of whether the service provided 

Page 44



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 29

continues to demonstrate value for money and meet the needs of the 
service user;  

d) The Directors of the Adult & Housing Services and the Children & Young 
People’s Service shall provide bi-annual reports to the relevant Cabinet 
Member and an annual report to the Cabinet Procurement Committee 
detailing the nature, extent and value of spot contracts entered into in the 
previous period.  

14. Alexandra Palace and Park  

 These Contract Standing Orders apply to the procurement of works, goods 
and services by or on behalf of Alexandra Palace and Park Charitable Trust 
on the following basis:  

a) The Chief Executive of APPCT shall have the powers and duties of a 
Director specified in Contract Standing Orders;  

b) The Alexandra Palace and Park Board and Panel shall have the powers 
and duties of the Cabinet Procurement Committee and a Cabinet Member 
specified in these Contract Standing Orders;  

c) In the event of any conflict, the requirements of the Charities Act 1993, 
any regulations made under that Act or charity law in general shall prevail 
over the provisions of Contract Standing Orders.  

 

15. Disposal of assets  

15.01.  Where Council assets (other than land & buildings) are to be disposed of 
because they are surplus to requirements, damaged or obsolete, 
reasonable endeavours must be undertaken to realise the residual value of 
the assets. 

  
15.02.  Assets having little or no realisable value may be disposed of as waste with 

the approval of the relevant Head of Business Unit, provided the disposal 
shall be in favour of recycling wherever possible.  

 
15.03.  In respect of assets to be disposed of having an estimated value of less 

than £5,000 (five thousand), the Director concerned should act in the 
manner most expedient to the efficient management of the service, having 
kept a record for so doing.  

 
15.04.  Assets recommended for disposal with an estimated value of more than 

£5,000 (five thousand), shall be disposed of in such a manner as to secure 
best value.  

 
15.05.  Disposal of assets valued at more than £250,000 (two hundred and fifty 

thousand) must be reported to the Cabinet Procurement Committee.  
 

Page 45



 

Report of changes to Contract Standing Orders April 2011 30

15.06.  Under no circumstances shall disposal of Council assets be made to 
employees or Members of the Council without the prior approval of the 
Director.  

 

16.  Urgent Decisions  

16.01.  These provisions apply where action needs to be taken urgently on any 
matter between meetings of the Cabinet Procurement Committee and that 
action would be outside the powers given to a Director or an individual 
Cabinet Procurement Committee Member. They may only be used in cases 
of genuine urgency and not to avoid proper forward planning.  

 
16.02.  All urgent decisions, including waivers and awards of contract, that are not 

“key decisions”, may be taken by the Chair of the Cabinet Procurement 
Committee or in his/her absence by the Leader of the Council.  

 
16.03.  All urgent decisions, including waivers and awards of contract, that are “key 

decisions”, may be taken by the Leader of the Council in accordance with 
his/her powers under the Constitution and subject to the statutory “Special 
Urgency” rules where these apply. In the absence of the Leader, the 
decision may be taken by the Chair of the Cabinet Procurement Committee 
subject to the same procedures being followed. 

 

Page 46



Agenda Item 11Page 47

Document is exempt



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Community Meals Contract
	7 Downhills Primary School Reception and Kitchen Works
	8 Revisions to Contract Standing Orders
	11 Downhills Primary School Reception and Kitchen Works

